DATE:

TO:

AIR POLLUTION CONTROL

BOARD
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO Fes i
AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT i

RON ROBERTS
Fourth District

BILL HORN
Fifth District

May 23, 2007

San Diego County Air Pollution Control Board

SUBJECT: ADOPTION BY REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE

STANDARD SUBPART VVV (POLYMERIC COATING OF SUPPORTING
SUBSTRATES), AMENDING REGULATION X (District: All)

SUMMARY:

Overview

Subpart VVV (Polymeric Coating of Supporting Substrates) was promulgated by the
Environmental Protection Agency on September 11, 1989. It applies to certain
industrial web coating operations at facilities that were constructed, modified, or
reconstructed after April 30, 1987, and that apply elastomers, polymers, or prepolymers
to a supporting web other than paper, plastic film, metallic foil, or a metal coil. This
includes certain types of reverse osmosis membranes. The Air Pollution Control
District did not complete the process to receive delegation from the Environmental
Protection Agency to implement and enforce this Subpart at that time because there
were no affected facilities in San Diego.

The Environmental Protection Agency recently concluded that there are some San
Diego facilities subject to the federal New Source Performance Standard Subpart VVV.
It is requested that the Board adopt Subpart VVV by reference. Adoption by reference
will amend Regulation X (Standards of Performance for New Stationary Sources) to
incorporate a Federal Register reference to Subpart VV'V.

After adoption by reference, the Air Pollution Control District will then request
delegation from the Environmental Protection Agency to become the primary agency to
implement and enforce federal Subpart VVV locally.

Recommendation(s)

AIR POLLUTION CONTROL OFFICER

1. Adopt the resolution amending Regulation X of the District Rules and Regulations
by adding federal Subpart VVV referencing the Federal Register and make
appropriate findings:

(1) of necessity, authority, clarity, consistency, non-duplication and reference as
required by Section 40727 of the State Health and Safety Code;



SUBJECT: ADOPTION BY REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE
STANDARD SUBPART VVV (POLYMERIC COATING OF SUPPORTING
SUBSTRATES), AMENDING REGULATION X (District: All)

(i1) that an analysis of existing requirements applicable to the source or category
is not required by Section 40727.2 of the Health and Safety Code because the
proposed addition of Subpart VVV does not impose new or more stringent
requirements;

(1ii) that adding Subpart VVV will alleviate a problem and will promote
attainment of ambient air quality standards (Section 40001 of the State Health
and Safety Code);

(iv) that an assessment of the socioeconomic impact is not required by Section
40728.5 of the State Health and Safety Code because adding Subpart VVV
will not significantly affect air quality or emission limitations; and

(v)  that it is certain there is no possibility that adding Subpart VVV may have a
significant adverse effect on the environment, and this action is exempt
from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15061(b)(3).

2. Direct the Air Pollution Control Officer to request delegation from the
Environmental Protection Agency to implement and enforce Subpart VVV.

Fiscal Impact
The recommended action will have no fiscal impact on the District. Subpart VVV will
be enforced with existing staff.

Business Impact Statement

Delegation to implement and enforce a federal Subpart by a local agency is generally
preferred by affected businesses. They can continue to work with the Air Pollution
Control District to resolve any compliance issues that may arise rather than deal directly
with the federal agency.

EPA recently determined that certain facilities manufacturing reverse osmosis
membranes are subject to Subpart VVV depending on the exact nature of the membrane
coated. There are six facilities in San Diego County which manufacture reverse
osmosis membranes. The District has determined that five of these are subject to
Subpart VVV. Two of these five facilities are in compliance with the federal
requirements. Two facilities may need to upgrade their air pollution control system to
fully comply with the regulation. The upgrade would consist of capturing relatively
small emissions from their coating preparation area and venting them to an existing air
pollution control device. Both of these facilities are owned by the same company.
Discussions with this company and other companies that have made similar upgrades
indicate that the cost of such an upgrade would not be significant. One facility may
need to perform additional recordkeeping and reporting to fully comply.

_2-



SUBJECT: ADOPTION BY REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE
STANDARD SUBPART VVV (POLYMERIC COATING OF SUPPORTING
SUBSTRATES), AMENDING REGULATION X (District: All)

Adyvisory Board Statement
There was no quorum at the Air Pollution Control Advisory Committee meeting. The
members present supported the recommendation at its May 10, 2006, meeting.

BACKGROUND:

Federal New Source Performance Standards (NSPSs) are regulations that establish minimum air
pollution control standards for specific industries. They are promulgated as Subparts of Part 60
of the Code of Federal Regulations by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and apply
uniformly throughout the country. The EPA can enforce NSPSs but often delegates primary
implementation and enforcement authority to state and local air pollution control agencies. After
such a delegation, EPA retains the authority to enforce the NSPS, but in most situations the state
or local agency enforces the regulation instead.

Subpart VVV is a federal NSPS promulgated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in
1989 (54 FR 37551, Sept. 11, 1989) applicable to web coating operations at facilities that were
constructed, modified, or reconstructed after April 30, 1987, and that apply elastomers, polymers,
or prepolymers to a supporting web (other than paper, plastic film, metallic foil, or a metal coil).
A web coating operation is the coating of products that are flexible enough to be unrolled from a
large roll and coated as a continuous substrate. The standards in the rule apply to facilities using
more than 105 tons per year of volatile organic compounds in their coating operations. Facilities
using less than 105 tons per year are not subject to emission standards but are subject to
recordkeeping and reporting requirements.

On November 6, 1990 (APCB #6), the Air Pollution Control Board adopted a local emission
control measure that was the equivalent to the federal Subpart VVV into Air Pollution Control
District (District) Regulation X. The District petitioned the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) for delegation of authority to implement and enforce the equivalent measure at that time.
After years of inaction, EPA declined to approve the delegation because it required a line-by-line
comparison of the federal and locally adopted rule. They instead recommended adoption of the
federal version of Subpart VVV by reference. However, at that time, the District determined
there were no local businesses subject to this Subpart and did not proceed with the adoption by
reference, but repealed the local rule instead on April 12, 2000 (APCB #1).

If Subpart VVV is adopted by reference, the District will petition EPA for delegation of
implementation and enforcement authority and anticipates routine approval by EPA. Although
Subpart VVV is already enforced by EPA, adoption and delegation of enforcement authority to
the District will allow for more efficient implementation of the Subpart both for the affected
facilities and the District. In addition, adoption by reference will simplify the process for
adopting any future EPA amendments.

There was no opposition to adopting Subpart VVV by reference or other issues raised at the
public workshop held on April 26, 2006.



SUBJECT: ADOPTION BY REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE
STANDARD SUBPART VVV (POLYMERIC COATING OF SUPPORTING
SUBSTRATES), AMENDING REGULATION X (District: All)

Socioeconomic Impact Assessment

Section 40728.5 of the State Health and Safety Code requires the District to perform a
socioeconomic impact assessment for new and revised rules and regulations significantly
affecting air quality or emission limitations. Amending Regulation X of the District Rules and
Regulations by adding federal Subpart VVV will not significantly affect air quality or emission
limitations since all affected sources are already subject to the regulation. Therefore, a
socloeconomic impact assessment is not required.

Compliance with Board Policy on Adopting New Rules

On February 2, 1993, the Board directed that, with the exception of a regulation requested by
business or a regulation for which a socioeconomic impact assessment is not required, no new or
revised regulation shall be implemented unless specifically required by federal or State law. The
proposed adoption of federal Subpart VVV is consistent with this Board directive.

Comparison to Existing Requirements

Health and Safety Code Section 40727.2 requires that whenever the District proposes adopting,
amending, or repealing a rule or regulation, an analysis be prepared to identify and compare the
air pollution control elements of the proposal with corresponding elements of existing or
proposed federal or District requirements. Pursuant to Section 40727.2(g), however, this analysis
is not necessary if the District finds that the proposed rule does not impose a new emission limit
or standard, nor make an existing emission limit or standard more stringent, nor impose new or
more stringent monitoring, reporting, or recordkeeping requirements. The proposed amendments
do not impose new or more stringent standards or monitoring, reporting, or recordkeeping
requirements.

Environmental Statement

The California Environmental Quality Act requires an environmental review for certain actions.
The District has conducted a preliminary review of whether the California Environmental Quality
Act applies to amending Regulation X of the District Rules and Regulations by adding federal
Subpart VVV by reference. It is certain there is no possibility that this action may have a
significant adverse effect on the environment. Therefore, the adoption of amendments to
Regulation X is exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15061(b)(3).

Linkage to the County of San Diego’s Strategic Plan

The County's five-year strategic plan includes an Environment Initiative to ensure environmental
preservation and enhance quality of life. Facilitating enforcement of federal Subpart VVV on
sources that may emit toxic air pollutants or sizeable amounts of volatile organic compounds

fulfills the objective to restore air quality by ensuring reduced emissions, thus protecting public
health.



SUBJECT: ADOPTION BY REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE
STANDARD SUBPART VVV (POLYMERIC COATING OF SUPPORTING
SUBSTRATES), AMENDING REGULATION X (District: All)

Respectfully submitted,
mz/ S “1eRccoce g X
CHANDRA L. WALLAR OND A. FERNANDEZ
Deputy Chief Administrative Officer Air Pollution Control Officer (Acting)

ATTACHMENT(S)

Attachment A - Resolution titled Resolution Adding By Reference Federal New Source
Performance Standards Subpart VVV — Polymeric Coating of Supporting
Substrates To Regulation X of The Rules and Regulations of The San Diego
County Air Pollution Control District.

Attachment B - Change Copy of Regulation X
Attachment C - New Source Performance Standard Subpart VVV

Attachment D - Workshop Report



SUBJECT:

ADOPTION BY REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE

STANDARD SUBPART VVV (POLYMERIC COATING OF SUPPORTING
SUBSTRATES), AMENDING REGULATION X (District: All)

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET

CONCURRENCE(S)

COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW

Written disclosure per County Charter

Section 1000.1 required

GROUP/AGENCY FINANCE DIRECTOR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Requires Four Votes

GROUP/AGENCY INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY DIRECTOR

CHIEF TECHNOLOGY OFFICER

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES

Other Concurrence(s): N/A

[X] Ye@ ‘f/‘f /37

[ ]Yes [X]No

[ 1Yes [X]N/A
[ 1Yes [XIN/A
[ ]Yes [X]No

[ ]Yes [XIN/A
[ 1Yes [XIN/A
[ 1Yes [XIN/A

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: Air Pollution Control District, County of San Diego

CONTACT PERSON(S):

Raymond A. Fernandez

Name
(858) 586-2700

Phone
(858) 586-2701

Fax
0176

Mail Station
Raymond.Fernandez@sdcounty.ca.gov

E-mail

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE;:

wd A ‘léwmaéé

Raymond A. Fernandez,

Air Pollution Control Officer (Acting)



SUBJECT: ADOPTION BY REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE
STANDARD SUBPART VVV (POLYMERIC COATING OF SUPPORTING
SUBSTRATES), AMENDING REGULATION X (District: All)

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET
(continued)

PREVIOUS RELEVANT BOARD ACTIONS:
April 12, 2000 (APCB #1), Repeal of measure equivalent to Subpart VVV; November 6, 1990
(APCB #6), Approval of measure equivalent to Subpart VVV.

BOARD POLICIES APPLICABLE:
N/A

BOARD POLICY STATEMENTS:
N/A

CONTRACT AND/OR REQUISITION NUMBER(S):
N/A



Resolution No. 07-113

05/23/07 (APCD3) ATTACHMENT A

Re¢ Rules and Regulations of the)
Air Pollution Control District )
ol San Dicgo County .. ... .. )

RESOLUTION ADDING BY REFERENCE FEDERAL
NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS SUBPART VVV - POLYMERIC
COATING OF SUPPORTING SUBSTRATES TO REGULATION X
OF THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY
AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT

On motion of Member Cox , seconded by Member Jacob ,
the following resolution is adopted:

WHERFAS, the San Dicgo County Air Pollution Control Board, pursuant to Section 40702
of the Health and Safcty Code, adopted Rules and Regulations of the Air Pollution Control
District of San Diego County; and

WHEREAS, said Board now desires to amend said Rules and Regulations; and

WHEREAS, notice has been given and a public hearing has becn had relating to the
amendment of said Rules and Regulations pursuant to Section 40725 of the Health and Safety Code.

NOW THEREFORE IT [S RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the San Dicgo County Air
Pollution Control Board that the Rules and Regulations of the Air Pollution Control District of
San Dicgo County be and hereby are amended as lollows:

Proposed amendment to the Preamble to Regulation X adding Subpart VVV by reference
is to read as follows:

REGULATION X. STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW
STATIONARY SOURCES (NSPS) (Rev. Effective 5/23/07)

The provisions of Part 60, Chapter |, Title 40, of the Code of Federal Regulations, (40 CFR 60),
applicable to the subparts listed in this Regulation are hereby adopted by reference on the date shown
and made part of the Air Pollution Control District Rules and Regulations. Whenever any sourcc 1s
subject to more than one rule, regulation, provision, or requirement relating to the control of any air
contaminant, 1n cases of conflict or duplication the most stringent rule, regulation, provision, or
requirement shall apply.

All new sourccs of air pollution and all modttied or reconstructed sources of arr pollution shall
comply with the applicable standards, criteria, and requirements sct forth herein. For the purpose of
this Regulation. the word “Administrator’” as used in 40 CFR 60 shall mean the Air Pollution Control
Officer of the San Diego County Air Pollution Control District, except that the Air Pollution Control

Resolution Regulation X - Subpart VVV A-l
572307



Officer shall not be empowered to approve alternate test methods, alternate standards or work
practices. Other deviations, if any, from the provisions of 40 CFR 60 which arc adopted by the Air
Pollution Control Board are noted in the reference to the affected Subpart.

The ULS. Environmental Protcction Agency ( EPA) retains concurrent enforeement authority for these
standards pursuant to Scction 13 of the federal Clean Air Act, as amended, if the EPA Administrator

desires to exercise 1t, including those not vet adopted by the Air Pollutton Control District.

The addition of federal Subparts by reference to Regulation X shall take effect and be in force on
the date of delegation of enforcement authority to the San Diego County Air Pollution Control

District by EPA.

SUBPART D
40CFR60.40-40

SUBPART Da
40CFR60.40a-49a

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR FOSSIL-FUEL-FIRED
STEAM GENERATORS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION IS
COMMENCED AFTER AUGUST 17, 1971

FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date
39 FR 20791, June 14, 1974 October 17, 2001 Pending
40 FR 2803, Jan. 106, 1975 October 17, 2041 Pending
40 FR 46256, Oct. 6, 1975 October 17, 2001 Pending
41 FR 51398, Nov. 22, 1970 October 17, 2001 Pending
42 I'R 37936, July 25, 1977 October 17. 2001 Pending
42 FR 61537, Dec. 5, 1977 Qctober 17, 200! Pending
43 FR 9278, Mar. 7, 1978 October 17, 2001 Pending
44 FR 33612, June 17, 1979 October 17, 2001 Pending
44 FR 76787, Dec. 28, 1979 Oclober 17, 2001 Pending
45 I'R 36077, May 29, 1980 October 17, 2001 Pending
45 FR 47140, July 14, 1980 October 17,2001 Pending
46 'R 57498, Nov. 24, 1981 October 17, 2001 Pending
48 'R 3736, Jan. 27, 1083 October 17, 20601 Pending
ST FR 42797, Nov. 25, 1986 QOctober 17, 2001 'ending
52 FR 28954, Aug. 4, 19¥7 Ociober 17, 2001 Pending
54 FR 60662, 'eb. 14, 1989 October 17, 2001 Pending
54 FR 21344, May 17, 1989 October 17, 2001 Pending
55 FR 5212, Feb. 14, 1990 October 17, 2001 Pending
61 FR 49976, Sept. 24, 1990 October 17, 2001 Pending

05 FR 61752, Qct. 17, 2000

Not Yet Adopted

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR ELECTRIC UTILITY
STEAM GENERATING UNITS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION

1S COMMENCED AFTER SEPTEMBER 18, 1978

FR Citation

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

44 FR 33613, June L1, 1979 October 17,2001 Pending
48 14 3737, Jan. 27, 1983 October 17, 2001 Pending
54 FR 6663, Feb. 14, 1989 October 17, 2001 Pending
54 FR 21344, May 17, 1989 October 17, 2001 Pending
55 IR 5212, Feb. 14, 1990 October 17, 2001 Pending
55 'R 18876, May 7, 1990 October 17, 2001 Pending

Resolution Regulation X — Subpart VVV



SUBPART Db

40CFR060.40b-49b

SUBPART Dec

40CFR60.40c-48c

SUBPART GG

40CFR60.330-335

03 FR 49453, Scept. 160 1998
04 FR 7404, Feb. 12, 1999

65 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000
06 FR IRS5T, April 10, 2001
66 KR AT178, June |1, 200
06 FR 42610, Aug. 14, 2001
70 FR 28653, May 18, 2005
70 FR 51268, Aug. 30,2003
71 I'R 9870, I'eb. 27, 2006

71 FR 33399 Junc 9., 20006

October 17, 2001
October 17. 2001
October 17. 2001
October 17,2001
October 17,2001
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted

Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR INDUSTRIAL-
COMMERCIAL-INSTITUTIONAL STEAM GENERATING UNITS

FR Citation

51 FR 42768, Nov. 23, 1986
52 FR 47842, Dec. 106, 1987
54 FR 51824, Dece. 18, 1989
54 [FR 51819, Dec. 18, 1959
55 FR 5212, Feb. 14, 1990
55 FR 18876, May 7. 1990
60 I'R 28062, May 30, 1995
61 I'R 14031, Mar. 29, 1996
62 I'R 52641, Oct. 8, 1997
63 FR 49454, Sept. 16, 1998
04 FR 7464, l'eb. 12, 1999
65 FR 13243, Mar. 13, 2000
65 FR 61752, Oct. 17. 2000
60 R 18553, April 10, 2001
00 I'R 42610, Aug. 14, 2001
60 I'R 49834, Oct. 1, 2001
09 FR 40773, July 7, 2004
71 FR 9881, IF'eb. 27, 2006
71 FR 33400, June 9, 20006

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001

Not Yet Adopied

Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted

Nol Yct Adopled

Not Yet Adopled
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted

Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR SMALL INDUSTRIAL-
COMMERCIAL-INSTITUTIONAL STEAM GENERATING UNITS

FR Citation

55 I'R 37683, Sepl. 12, 1990
61 I'R 20736, May 8, 19906
64 FR 7465, Feb. 12, 1999
05 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000
71 FR 9884, Feb. 27, 2006

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

Aug. 13, 1997
Aug. 13, 1997
Not Yet Adopled
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted

June 24, 1998
Junc 24, 1998

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR STATIONARY

GAS TURBINES

FR Citation

44 I'R 52798, Sepl. 10, 1979
47 FR 3770, Jan, 27, 1982

Resolution Regulation X — Subpart VVV

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

QOctober 17, 2001
October 17, 2001

Pending
Peading



SUBPART AAA
40CTFR60.530-539b

SUBPART 000
40CFR60.670-676

SUBPART UUU
40CFR060.730-737

SUBPART VVV
40CFR60.740-748

SUBPART WWW
40CFR60.750-759

52 FR 42434, Nov. 5, 1987
54 FR 6675 Feb. 14, 1989
54 FR 27016, June 27, 198Y
65 FR 61759, Oct. 17, 2000
69 'R 41359 July &, 2004
71 FR 9458, T'eb. 24, 2006

Qctober 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted

Pending
Pending
I'ending

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW RESIDENTIAL

wWOOD HEATERS

FR Citation

53 FR 5872, Feb. 26, 1988
53 TR 12009, April 12, 1988
53 FR 14889, April 26, 1958
57 FR 5328, Feb. 13, 1992
60 FR 33925, Junce 29, 1995
03 FR 04874, Nov. 24, 1998
64 R 7466, Feb. 12, 1999
65 FR 61763, Oct. 17, 2000

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

April 12,2000
April 12, 2000
Aprl 12,2000
Apnil 12, 2000
April 12, 2000
April 12, 2000
April 12, 2000
Not Yet Adopted

Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NONMETALLIC
MINERAL PROCESSING PLANTS

FR Citation

50 FR 31328, Aug. 1. 1985
54 'R 6680, I'eb. 14, 1989

62 FR 31351, June 9, 1997

065 PR 61778, Oct. 17, 2000

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

April 28, 1999
Not Yet Adopted
April 28, 1999
Not Yet Adopted

May 28, 2002

May 28. 2002

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR CALCINERS AND DRYERS

IN MINERAL INDUSTRIES
FR Citation

57 FR 44503, Sept. 28, 1992
58 FR 40591, July 29, 1993

65 FR 61778, Oct. 17, 2000

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

Nov. 17, 1999
Nov. 17, 1999
Not Yet Adopted

May 28, 2002
May 28, 2002

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR POL.YMERIC COATING
OF SUPPORTING SUBSTRATES

FR Citation
54 FR 37551, Sept. {1, 1989

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

(Date of Adoption)

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR MUNICIPAL

SOLID WASTE LANDFILLS

FR Citation
61 FR 9919, Mar. 12, 1996
63 FR 32750, June 16. 1998

Resolution Regulation X — Subpart VVV

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

Aug. 13,1997
Not Yet Adopted

June 24, 1998

A-4



04 FR 9262, I'eb. 24, 1999 Not Yel Adopted

65 FR 18908, Apr. 10, 2000 Not Yet Adopted
65 VR 61778, Oct. 17, 2000 Not Yet Adopted
71 1R 55127, Sept. 21, 2000 Not Yel Adopted

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the subject addition of federal
Subpart VVV by reference to Regulation X shall take effect and be in lorce on the date of
delegation of enforcement authority to the Air Pollution Control District by the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Air Pollution Control Board of the San Diego County
Air Pollution Control District, State of California, this 23rd . dayof
May_ , 2007 by the following votcs:

AYES: Cox, Jacob, Slater-Price, Roberts, HoYn

e Lt T

Resolution Regulation X — Subpart VVV A -

n



STATE OF CALIFORNIA)
County of San Diego)™

[ hereby certify that the toregoing 1s a tull, true and correct copy ot the Original Resolution

entered in the Minutes ot the Board of Supervisors.

THOMAS J. PASTUSZKA
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

e (.
By: ._&('_fl"f“, e A= S
Catherine Santos, Deputy

Resolution No. 07-113
05/23/07 (APCD 3)




ATTACHMENT B
SAN DIEGO AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT
PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO REGULATION X

CHANGE COPY

Proposed amendment to Regulation X is to read as follows:

REGULATION X. STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW
STATIONARY SOURCES (NSPS) (Rev. Effective 5/23/07)

The provisions of Part 60, Chapter I, Title 40, of the Code of Federal Regulations, (40 CFR 60),
applicable to the subparts listed in this Regulation are hereby adopted by reference on the date
shown and made part of the Air Pollution Control District Rules and Regulations. Whenever
any source is subject to more than one rule, regulation, provision, or requirement relating to the
control of any air contaminant, in cases of conflict or duplication the most stringent rule,
regulation, provision, or requirement shall apply.

All new sources of air pollution and all modified or reconstructed sources of air pollution shall
comply with the applicable standards, criteria, and requirements set forth herein. For the
purpose of this Regulation, the word “Administrator” as used in 40 CFR 60 shall mean the Air
Pollution Control Officer of the San Diego County Air Pollution Control District, except that
the Air Pollution Control Officer shall not be empowered to approve alternate test methods,
alternate standards or work practices. Other deviations, if any, from the provisions of 40 CFR
60 which are adopted by the Air Pollution Control Board are noted in the reference to the
affected Subpart.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) retains concurrent enforcement authority for
these standards pursuant to Section 113 of the federal Clean Air Act, as amended, if the EPA
Administrator desires to exercise it, including those not yet adopted by the Air Pollution Control
District.

The addition of federal Subparts by reference to Regulation X shall take effect and be in force
on the date of delegation of enforcement authority to the San Diego County Air Pollution
Control District by EPA.

SUBPART D STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR FOSSIL-FUEL-FIRED
40CFR60.40-46 STEAM GENERATORS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION IS
COMMENCED AFTER AUGUST 17, 1971
FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date
39 FR 20791, June 14, 1974 October 17, 2001 Pending
40 FR 2803, Jan. 16, 1975 October 17, 2001 Pending
40 FR 46256, Oct. 6, 1975 October 17, 2001 Pending
41 FR 51398, Nov. 22, 1976 October 17, 2001 Pending
SDAPCD B-1

5/23/07



SUBPART Da
40CFR60.40a-49a

SUBPART Db
40CFR60.40b-49b

42 FR 37936, July 25, 1977
42 FR 61537, Dec. 5, 1977
43 FR 9278, Mar. 7, 1978
44 FR 33612, June 17, 1979
44 FR 76787, Dec. 28, 1979
45 FR 36077, May 29, 1980
45 FR 47146, July 14, 1980
46 FR 57498, Nov. 24, 1981
48 FR 3736, Jan. 27, 1983
51 FR 42797, Nov. 25, 1986
52 FR 28954, Aug. 4, 1987
54 FR 6662, Feb. 14, 1989
54 FR 21344, May 17, 1989
55 FR 5212, Feb. 14, 1990
61 FR 49976, Sept. 24, 1996
65 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000

October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,

2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001

Not Yet Adopted

Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR ELECTRIC UTILITY
STEAM GENERATING UNITS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION

IS COMMENCED AFTER SEPTEMBER 18, 1978

FR Citation

44 FR 33613, June 11, 1979
48 F4 3737, Jan. 27, 1983
54 FR 6663, Feb. 14, 1989
54 FR 21344, May 17, 1989
55 FR 5212, Feb. 14, 1990
55 FR 18876, May 7, 1990
63 FR 49453, Sept. 16, 1998
64 FR 7464, Feb. 12, 1999
65 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000
66 FR 18551, April 10, 2001
66 FR 31178, June 11, 2001
66 FR 42610, Aug. 14, 2001
70 FR 28653, May 18, 2005
70 FR 51268, Aug. 30, 2005
71 FR 9876, Feb. 27, 2006
71 FR 33399, June 9, 2006

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,
October 17,

2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001
2001

Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted

Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR INDUSTRIAL-
COMMERCIAL-INSTITUTIONAL STEAM GENERATING UNITS
Delegation Date

FR Citation

51 FR 42768, Nov. 25, 1986
52 FR 47842, Dec. 16, 1987
54 FR 51824, Dec. 18, 1989
54 FR 51819, Dec. 18, 1989

Adoption Date
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001

Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending



SUBPART Dc

40CFR60.40c-48c

SUBPART GG

40CFR60.330-335

SUBPART AAA
40CFR60.530-539b

55 FR 5212, Feb. 14, 1990
55 FR 18876, May 7, 1990
60 FR 28062, May 30, 1995
61 FR 14031, Mar. 29, 1996
62 FR 52641, Oct. 8, 1997
63 FR 49454, Sept. 16, 1998
64 FR 7464, Feb. 12, 1999
65 FR 13243, Mar. 13, 2000
65 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000
66 FR 18553, April 10, 2001
66 FR 42610, Aug. 14, 2001
66 FR 49834, Oct. 1, 2001
69 FR 40773, July 7, 2004
71 FR 9881, Feb. 27, 2006
71 FR 33400, June 9, 2006

April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted

Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR SMALL INDUSTRIAL-
COMMERCIAL-INSTITUTIONAL STEAM GENERATING UNITS

FR Citation

55 FR 37683, Sept. 12, 1990
61 FR 20736, May 8, 1996
64 FR 7465, Feb. 12, 1999
65 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000
71 FR 9884, Feb. 27, 2006

Adoption Date
Aug. 13, 1997

Aug. 13, 1997

Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted

Delegation Date

June 24, 1998
June 24, 1998

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR STATIONARY

GAS TURBINES

FR Citation

44 FR 52798, Sept. 10, 1979
47 FR 3770, Jan. 27, 1982
52 FR 42434, Nov. 5, 1987
54 FR 6675 Feb. 14, 1989
54 FR 27016, June 27, 1989
65 FR 61759, Oct. 17, 2000
69 FR 41359, July 8, 2004
71 FR 9458, Feb. 24, 2006

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted

Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW RESIDENTIAL

WOOD HEATERS

FR Citation

53 FR 5873, Feb. 26, 1988
53 FR 12009, April 12, 1988
53 FR 14889, April 26, 1988
57 FR 5328, Feb. 13, 1992
60 FR 33925, June 29, 1995

Adoption Date
April 12, 2000
April 12, 2000
April 12, 2000
April 12, 2000
April 12, 2000

Delegation Date

Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending
Pending



SUBPART OO0
40CFR60.670-676

SUBPART UUU
40CFR60.730-737

SUBPART VVV
40CFR60.740-748

SUBPART WWW
40CFR60.750-759

63 FR 64874, Nov. 24, 1998 April 12, 2000 Pending
64 FR 7466, Feb. 12, 1999 April 12, 2000 Pending
65 FR 61763, Oct. 17, 2000 Not Yet Adopted

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NONMETALLIC
MINERAL PROCESSING PLANTS

FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date
50 FR 31328, Aug. 1, 1985 April 28, 1999 May 28, 2002

54 FR 6680, Feb. 14, 1989 Not Yet Adopted

62 FR 31351, June 9, 1997 April 28, 1999 May 28, 2002

65 FR 61778, Oct. 17, 2000 Not Yet Adopted

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR CALCINERS AND DRYERS

IN MINERAL INDUSTRIES
FR Citation

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

57 FR 44503, Sept. 28, 1992 Nov. 17, 1999 May 28, 2002
58 FR 40591, July 29, 1993 Nov. 17, 1999 May 28, 2002
65 FR 61778, Oct. 17, 2000 Not Yet Adopted

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR POLYMERIC COATING

OF SUPPORTING SUBSTRATES

FR Citation
54 FR 37551, Sept. 11, 1989

Adoption Date

(Date of Adoption)

Delegation Date

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR MUNICIPAL

SOLID WASTE LANDFILLS
FR Citation

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

61 FR 9919, Mar. 12, 1996 Aug. 13, 1997 June 24, 1998
63 FR 32750, June 16. 1998 Not Yet Adopted
64 FR 9262, Feb. 24, 1999 Not Yet Adopted
65 FR 18908, Apr. 10, 2000 Not Yet Adopted
65 FR 61778, Oct. 17, 2000 Not Yet Adopted
71 FR 55127, Sept. 21, 2006 Not Yet Adopted



ATTACHMENT C

e-CFR Data is current as of March 21, 2006

Title 40: Protection of Environment

PART 60—STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW STATIONARY SOURCES

Subpart VVV—Standards of Performance for Polymeric Coating of Supporting Substrates Facilities
Source: 54 FR 37551, Sept. 11, 1989, unless otherwise noted.
§ 60.740 Applicability and designation of affected facility.

(a) The affected facility to which the provisions of this subpart apply is each coating operation and any onsite coating mix
preparation equipment used to prepare coatings for the polymeric coating of supporting substrates.

(b) Any affected facility for which the amount of VOC used is less than 95 Mg per 12-month period is subject only to the
requirements of §§60.744(b), 60.747(b), and 60.747(c). If the amount of VOC used is 95 Mg or greater per 12-month
period, the facility is subject to all the requirements of this subpart. Once a facility has become subject to the
requirements of this subpart, it will remain subject to those requirements regardless of changes in annual VOC use.

(c) This subpart applies to any affected facility for which construction, modification, or reconstruction begins after April 30,
1987, except for the facilities specified in paragraph (d) of this section.

(d) This subpart does not apply to the following:

(1) Coating mix preparation equipment used to manufacture coatings at one plant for shipment to another plant for use in
an affected facility (coating operation) or for sale to another company for use in an affected facility (coating operation);

(2) Coating mix preparation equipment or coating operations during those times they are used to prepare or apply
waterborne coatings so long as the VOC content of the coating does not exceed 9 percent by weight of the volatile
fraction;

(3) Web coating operations that print an image on the surface of the substrate or any coating applied on the same
printing line that applies the image.

§60.741 Definitions, symbols, and cross-reference tables.

(a) All terms used in this subpart not defined below have the meaning given to them in the Act and in subpart A of this
part.

Coating applicator means any apparatus used to apply a coating to a continuous substrate.

Coating mix preparation equipment means all mixing vessels in which solvent and other materials are blended to prepare
polymeric coatings.

Coating operation means any coating applicator(s), flashoff area(s), and drying oven(s) located between a substrate
unwind station and a rewind station that coats a continuous web to produce a substrate with a polymeric coating. Should
the coating process not employ a rewind station, the end of the coating operation is after the last drying oven in the
process.

C-1



Common emission control device means a device controlling emissions from an affected coating operation as well as
from any other emission source.

Concurrent means the period of time in which construction of an emission control device serving an affected facility is
commenced or completed, beginning 6 months prior to the date that construction of the affected facility commences and
ending 2 years after the date that construction of the affected facility is completed.

Control device means any apparatus that reduces the quantity of a pollutant emitted to the air.

Cover means, with respect to coating mix preparation equipment, a device that fits over the equipment opening to
prevent emissions of volatile organic compounds (VOC) from escaping.

Drying oven means a chamber within which heat is used to dry a surface coating; drying may be the only process or one
of multiple processes performed in the chamber.

Equivalent diameter means four times the area of an opening divided by its perimeter.

Flashoff area means the portion of a coating operation between the coating applicator and the drying oven where VOC
begins to evaporate from the coated substrate.

Natural draft opening means any opening in a room, building, or total enclosure that remains open during operation of
the facility and that is not connected to a duct in which a fan is installed. The rate and direction of the natural draft across
such an opening is a consequence of the difference in pressures on either side of the wall or barrier containing the
opening.

Nominal 1-month period means a calendar month or, if established prior to the performance test in a statement submitted
with notification of anticipated startup pursuant to 40 CFR 60.7(a)(2), a similar monthly time period (e.g., 30-day month or
accounting month).

Onsite coating mix preparation equipment means those pieces of coating mix preparation equipment located at the same
plant as the coating operation they serve.

Polymeric coating of supporting substrates means a web coating process that applies elastomers, polymers, or
prepolymers to a supporting web other than paper, plastic film, metallic foil, or metal coil.

Substrate means the surface to which a coating is applied.

Temporary enclosure means a total enclosure that is constructed for the sole purpose of measuring the fugitive VOC
emissions from an affected facility.

Total enclosure means a structure that is constructed around a source of emissions and operated so that all VOC
emissions are collected and exhausted through a stack or duct. With a total enclosure, there will be no fugitive
emissions, only stack emissions. The drying oven itself may be part of the total enclosure.

Vapor capture system means any device or combination of devices designed to contain, collect, and route solvent vapors
released from the coating mix preparation equipment or coating operation.

VOC in the applied coating means the product of Method 24 VOC analyses or formulation data (if those data are
demonstrated to be equivalent to Method 24 results) and the total volume of coating fed to the coating applicator.

VOC used means the amount of VOC delivered to the coating mix preparation equipment of the affected facility
(including any contained in premixed coatings or other coating ingredients prepared off the plant site) for the formulation
of polymeric coatings to be applied to supporting substrates at the coating operation, plus any solvent added after initial
formulation is complete (e.g., dilution solvent added at the coating operation). If premixed coatings that require no

C-2



mixing at the plant site are used, “VOC used” means the amount of VOC delivered to the coating applicator(s) of the
affected facility.

Volatile organic compounds or VOC means any organic compounds that participate in atmospheric photochemical
reactions; or that are measured by a reference method, an equivalent method, an alternative method, or that are
determined by procedures specified under any subpart.

Waterborne coating means a coating which contains more than 5 weight percent water in its volatile fraction.

Web coating means the coating of products, such as fabric, paper, plastic film, metallic foil, metal coil, cord, and yarn,
that are flexible enough to be unrolled from a large roll; and coated as a continuous substrate by methods including, but
not limited to, knife coating, roll coating, dip coating, impregnation, rotogravure, and extrusion.

(b) The nomenclature used in this subpart has the following meaning:
Ay=the area of each natural draft opening (k) in a total enclosure, in square meters.

C,=the concentration of VOC in each gas stream (j) exiting the emission control device, in parts per million
by volume.

Cpi=the concentration of VOC in each gas stream (i) entering the emission control device, in parts per million
by volume.

Cgi=the concentration of VOC in each gas stream (i) entering the emission control device from the affected
coating operation, in parts per million by volume.

Cu=the concentration of VOC in each uncontrolled gas stream (k) emitted directly to the atmosphere from the
affected coating operation, in parts per million by volume.

Cg=the concentration of VOC in the gas stream entering each individual carbon adsorber vessel (v), in parts
per million by volume. For purposes of calculating the efficiency of the individual adsorber vessel, C4, may be
measured in the carbon adsorption system's common inlet duct prior to the branching of individual inlet
ducts.

Chv=the concentration of VOC in the gas stream exiting each individual carbon adsorber vessel (v), in parts
per million by volume.

E=the control device efficiency achieved for the duration of the emission test (expressed as a fraction).

F=the VOC emission capture efficiency of the vapor capture system achieved for the duration of the emission
test (expressed as a fraction).

FV=the average inward face velocity across all natural draft openings in a total enclosure, in meters per hour.

H,=the individual carbon adsorber vessel (v) efficiency achieved for the duration of the emission test
(expressed as a fraction).

Hs,s=the carbon adsorption system efficiency calculated when each adsorber vessel has an individual
exhaust stack.

M.=the total mass (kg) of each coating (i) applied to the substrate at an affected coating operation during a
nominal 1-month period as determined from facility records.

C-3



M.=the total mass (kg) of VOC recovered for a nominal 1-month period.

Q=the volumetric flow rate of each gas stream (j) exiting the emission control device, in dry standard cubic
meters per hour when Method 18 or 25 is used to measure VOC concentration or in standard cubic meters
per hour (wet basis) when Method 25A is used to measure VOC concentration.

Qpi=the volumetric flow rate of each gas stream (i) entering the emission control device, in dry standard cubic
meters per hour when Method 18 or 25 is used to measure VOC concentration or in standard cubic meters
per hour (wet basis) when Method 25A is used to measure VOC concentration.

Qqg=the volumetric flow rate of each gas stream (i) entering the emission control device from the affected
coating operation, in dry standard cubic meters per hour when Method 18 or 25 is used to measure VOC
concentration or in standard cubic meters per hour (wet basis) when Method 25A is used to measure VOC
concentration.

Qg=the volumetric flow rate of each uncontrolled gas stream (k) emitted directly to the atmosphere from the
affected coating operation, in dry standard cubic meters per hour when Method 18 or 25 is used to measure
VOC concentration or in standard cubic meters per hour (wet basis) when Method 25A is used to measure
VOC concentration.

Qg.~=the volumetric flow rate of the gas stream entering each individual carbon adsorber vessel (v), in dry
standard cubic meters per hour when Method 18 or 25 is used to measure VOC concentration or in standard
cubic meters per hour (wet basis) when Method 25A is used to measure VOC concentration. For purposes of
calculating the efficiency of the individual adsorber vessel, the value of Qg, can be assumed to equal the
value of Q,, measured for that adsorber vessel.

Qny=the volumetric flow rate of the gas stream exiting each individual carbon adsorber vessel (v), in dry
standard cubic meters per hour when Method 18 or 25 is used to measure VOC concentration or in standard
cubic meters per hour (wet basis) when Method 25A is used to measure VOC concentration.

Qini=the volumetric flow rate of each gas stream (i) entering the total enclosure through a forced makeup air
duct, in standard cubic meters per hour (wet basis).

Q.ui=the volumetric flow rate of each gas stream (j) exiting the total enclosure through an exhaust duct or
hood, in standard cubic meters per hour (wet basis).

R=the overall VOC emission reduction achieved for the duration of the emission test (expressed as a
fraction).

RS;=the total mass (kg) of VOC retained on the coated substrate after oven drying or contained in waste
coating for a given combination of coating and substrate.

W.i=the weight fraction of VOC in each coating (i) applied at an affected coating operation during a nominal
1-month period as determined by Method 24.

(c) Tables 1a and 1b present a cross reference of the affected facility status and the relevant section(s) of the regulation.



Table l1la Cross Reference a,b

Compliance

Status Standard provisions §
60.743
A. Coating operation:

1. If projected VOC use is 8 Not applicable.

<95 Mg/yr. 60.740(b):
Monitor VOC
use.

2. If projected VOC use is 8 @O, (OO,

>=95 Mg/yr. 60.742(b)(1): (@)(3), or (A)(4);
Reduce VOC

emissions to
the atmosphere
from the
coating
operation by
at least 90
percent; or.

8§ ), (e).
60.742(b)(2):
Install,
operate, and
maintain a
total
enclosure
around the
coating
operation and
vent the
captured VOC
emissions from
the total
enclosure to a
control device

that is at
least 95
percent
efficient.
B. Coating mix preparation
equipment:
1. If projected VOC use is 8 @, ().

>=95 Mg/yr but <130 Mg/yr. 60.742(c)(3):
(i) Install,
operate, and
maintain a
cover on each
piece of
affected
equipment; or



2. 1T projected VOC use is
>=130 Mg/yr but there is no
concurrent construction of a
control device.

3. ITf projected VOC use is
>=130 Mg/yr and there is
concurrent construction of a
control device.

(i1) install,
operate, and
maintain a
cover on each
piece of
affected
equipment and
vent VOC
emissions to a
VOC control
device.

8 ().
60.742(c)(2):
(i) Install,
operate, and
maintain a
cover on each
piece of
affected
equipment; or
(i1) install,
operate, and
maintain a
cover on each
piece of
affected
equipment and
vent VOC
emissions to a
VOC control

device.

8§ ©). ().
60.742(c)(1):
Install,

operate, and
maintain a
cover on each
piece of
affected
equipment and
vent VOC
emissions from
the covered
equipment to a
95 percent
efficient
control device
while
preparation of
the coating is
taking place
within the
vessel.

a This table is presented for the convenience of the user and is not
intended to supersede the language of the regulation. For the details
of the requirements, refer to the text of the regulation.

b Refer to Table 1b to determine which subsections of 88§

60.744, 60.745, and 60.747 correspond to each compliance provision

(§ 60.743).



Compliance provisions_§

60.743

(a) (1)_Gaseous emission
test for coating
operations not using
carbon adsorption beds
with individual exhausts.

(a)(2)_Gaseous emission
test for coating
operations using carbon
adsorption beds with
individual exhausts.

(2)(3)_Monthly liquid
material balance can be
used only when a VOC
recovery device controls
only those emissions from
one affected coating
operation.

(a)(4)_Short-term (3 to 7
day) liquid material
balance_may be used as an
alternative to (a)(3).

(b)_Alternative standard
for coating
operation_demonstrate use
of approved total
enclosure and emissions
vented to a 95 percent
efficient control device.

Test

Table 1b Cross Reference

methods_§
60.745

Category/
equipment a

General, CA, CO,
TI, Cl, PE, TE.

General, CA,
PE, TE.

VOC recovery.....

General, CA,
CO, PE, TE.

General, CA, CO,
TI, Cl, PE, TE.

Monitoring
requirements_8§
60.744

@, (D, @), (K,
@@, (@, (o),
™. @-

@. (D, @), &),
©@. @-

@, kKoo -

@, (D, ), ),

@O, G, (@,

-

@, (1, ), ),

@@, G, (@,

@, (M, (h).

Reporting and

recordkeeping

requirements_8§
60.747

A. Coating operation:

@, @@, P,
@. (h), _
@YY (A). (@) () (D)
@) (i). ()3,

@), (), [@d)(6)-

@. @@, .
@. ),
@iy,

(@ (@)(ii). @) ().

@. (M, @. (.

@, (D, (O,
@. (M, (D@,
@@, (D@,
@ (6)-

@, (D, (N,
@. (M, (D@D,
@@, (@A),
@@, (DG,
@@(6)-



B. Coating mix preparation
equipment:

(c)_Standard for equipment
servicing a coating
operation with concurrent
construction of a control
device that uses at least
130 Mg/yr of
VOC_demonstrate that
covers meeting
specifications are
installed and used
properly; procedures
detailing proper use are
posted; the mix equipment
is vented to a 95 percent
efficient control device.

(d)_Standard for equipment
servicing a coating
operation that does not
have concurrent
construction of a control
device but uses at least
130 Mg/yr of VOC or for
equipment servicing a
coating operation that
uses <130 Mg/yr but
>=95 Mg/yr of
VOC_demonstrate that
covers meeting
specifications are
installed and used
properly; procedures
detailing proper use are
posted; the mix equipment
is vented to a control
device (optional).

®-@----a - General, CA, TI1,
Cl.
No other
requirements
apply.

@, (1D, ), k),
@@, ©G, ¢,
.

a CA=carbon adsorber; CO=condenser; Tl=thermal incinerator; Cl=catalytic incinerator; PE=partial enclosure;

TE=total enclosure.

@, (D, (N,
@, (M, (D@D,
@@, (DM,

@e).

C-38



§60.742 Standardsfor volatile organic compounds.

(a) Each owner or operator of an affected facility that is subject to the requirements of this
subpart shall comply with the emissions limitations set forth in this section on and after
the date on which the initial performance test required by 860.8 is completed, but not later
than 60 days after achieving the maximum production rate at which the affected facility
will be operated or 180 days after initial startup, whichever date comes first.

(b) For the coating operation, each owner or operator of an affected facility shall either:

(1) Reduce VOC emissions to the atmosphere from the coating operation by at least 90
percent (“emission reduction” standard); or

(2) Install, operate, and maintain a total enclosure around the coating operation and vent
the captured VOC emissions from the total enclosure to a control device that is at least 95
percent effecient (alternative standard).

(c) For the onsite coating mix preparation equipment of an affected facility, the owner or
operator shall comply with the following requirements, as applicable:

(1) For an affected facility that has concurrent construction of a control device and uses at
least 130 Mg of VOC per 12-month period, the owner or operator shall install, operate,
and maintain a cover on each piece of affected coating mix preparation equipment and
vent VOC emissions from the covered mix equipment to a 95 percent efficient control
device while preparation of the coating is taking place within the vessel.

(2) For an affected facility that does not have concurrent construction of a control device
but uses at least 130 Mg of VOC per 12-month period, the owner or operator shall either:

(i) Install, operate, and maintain a cover on each piece of affected coating mix preparation
equipment; or

(ii) Install, operate, and maintain a cover on each piece of affected coating mix
preparation equipment and vent VOC emissions to a VOC control device.

(3) For an affected facility that uses at least 95 Mg but less than 130 Mg of VOC per 12-
month period, the owner or operator shall either.

(i) Install, operate, and maintain a cover on each piece of affected coating mix preparation
equipment; or

(ii) Install, operate, and maintain a cover on each piece of affected coating mix
preparation equipment and vent VOC emissions to a VOC control device.



§60.743 Compliance provisions.

(a) To demonstrate compliance with the emission reduction standard for coating
operations specified in 860.742(b)(1), the owner or operator of the affected facility shall
use one of the following methods.

(1) Gaseous emission test for coating operations not using carbon adsorption beds with
individual exhausts. This method is applicable when the emissions from any affected
coating operation are controlled by a control device other than a fixed-bed carbon
adsorption system with individual exhaust stacks for each adsorber vessel. The owner or
operator using this method shall comply with the following procedures:

(i) Construct the vapor capture system and control device so that all gaseous volumetric
flow rates and total VOC emissions can be accurately determined by the applicable test
methods and procedures specified in 860.745(b) through (g);

(ii) Determine capture efficiency from the coating operation by capturing, venting, and
measuring all VOC emissions from the coating operation. During a performance test, the
owner or operator of an affected coating operation located in an area with other sources of
VOC shall isolate the coating operation emissions from all other sources of VOC by one
of the following methods:

(A) Build a temporary enclosure, as defined in 860.741(a) and conforming to the
requirements of 860.743(b)(1), around the affected coating operation. The temporary
enclosure must be constructed and ventilated (through stacks suitable for testing) so that it
has minimal impact on performance of the capture system; or

(B) Shut down all other sources of VOC and continue to exhaust fugitive emissions from
the affected coating operation through any building ventilation system and other room
exhausts such as those on drying ovens. All such ventilation air must be vented through
stacks suitable for testing because the VOC content in each must be determined.

(iii) Operate the emission control device with all emission sources connected and
operating.

(iv) Determine the efficiency (E) of the control device by Equation 1:

n n
121 Opitpi - ,jEI Qa3Caj
E = = (Equation 1)
Ly Bl

C-10



(v) Determine the efficiency (F) of the vapor capture system by Equation 2:

n
iil Qg1Ca+
F = - E (Equation 2)
0,.C.. + Q,.C
121 divat © Ly YrkCrk

(vi) For each affected coating operation subject to 860.742(b)(1) (emission reduction
standard for coating operations), compliance is demonstrated if the product of (E)x(F) is
equal to or greater than 0.90.

(2) Gaseous emission test for coating operations using carbon adsorption beds with
individual exhausts. This method is applicable when emissions from any affected coating
operation are controlled by a fixed-bed carbon adsorption system with individual exhaust
stacks for each adsorber vessel. The owner or operator using this method shall comply
with the following procedures:

(i) Construct the vapor capture system and control device so that each volumetric flow
rate and the total VOC emissions can be accurately determined by the applicable test
methods and procedures specified in 860.745 (b) through (g);

(ii) Assure that all VOC emissions from the coating operation are segregated from other
VOC sources and that the emissions can be captured for measurement, as described in
860.743(a)(1)(ii) (A) and (B);

(iii) Operate the emission control device with all emission sources connected and
operating;

(iv) Determine the efficiency (H,) of each individual adsorber vessel (v) using Equation 3:

Q. C..-0. C

h
Py = 'Siﬁgxt'ﬂx"I (Equation 3)

gv gy

(v) Determine the efficiency of the carbon adsorption system (Hsys) by computing the
average efficiency of the adsorber vessels as weighted by the volumetric flow rate (Qp,) of
each individual adsorber vessel (v) using Equation 4:

E anhw
= "I']
5¥5

(Equation 4)
nhv

y=]

(vi) Determine the efficiency (F) of the vapor capture system using Equation (2).

C-11



(vii) For each affected coating operation subject to 860.742(b)(1) (emission reduction
standard for coating operations), compliance is demonstrated if the product of (Hsys)x(F)
is equal to or greater than 0.90.

(3) Monthly liquid material balance. This method can be used only when a VOC recovery
device controls only those emissions from one affected coating operation. It may not be
used if the VOC recovery device controls emissions from any other VOC emission
sources. When demonstrating compliance by this method, 860.8(f) (Performance Tests) of
this part does not apply. The owner or operator using this method shall comply with the
following procedures to determine the VOC emission reduction for each nominal 1-month
period:

(i) Measure the amount of coating applied at the coating applicator. This quantity shall be
determined at a time and location in the process after all ingredients (including any
dilution solvent) have been added to the coating, or appropriate adjustments shall be made
to account for any ingredients added after the amount of coating has been determined;

(ii) Determine the VOC content of all coatings applied using the test method specified in
860.745(a). This value shall be determined at a time and location in the process after all
ingredients (including any dilution solvent) have been added to the coating, or appropriate
adjustments shall be made to account for any ingredients added after the VOC content in
the coating has been determined,

(iii) Install, calibrate, maintain, and operate, according to the manufacturer's
specifications, a device that indicates the cumulative amount of VOC recovered by the
control device over each nominal 1-month period. The device shall be certified by the
manufacturer to be accurate to within £2.0 percent;

(iv) Measure the amount of VOC recovered; and

(v) Calculate the overall VOC emission reduction (R) for each and every nominal 1-
month period using Equation 5. Emissions during startups and shutdowns are to be
included when determining R because startups and shutdowns are part of normal
operation for this source category.

M
R = — L (Equation 5)

L oiMe-Rsy]

If the value of R is equal to or greater than 0.90, compliance with §860.742(b)(1) is
demonstrated.

(A) The value of RS; is zero unless the owner or operator submits the following
information to the Administrator for approval of a measured value of RS; that is greater
than zero but less than or equal to 6 percent by weight of the liquid VOC applied:

C-12



(1) Measurement techniques; and

(2) Documentation that the measured value of RS; exceeds zero but is less than or equal to
6 percent by weight of the liquid VOC applied.

(B) For those facilities not subject to paragraph (a)(3)(v)(A) of this section, the value of
RS; is zero unless the owner or operator submits the following information to the
Administrator for approval of a measured value of RS; that is greater than 6 percent by
weight of the liquid VOC applied.

(1) Measurement techniques;

(2) Documentation that the measured value of RS; exceeds 6 percent by weight of the
liquid VOC applied; and

(3) Either documentation of customer specifications requiring higher values or
documentation that the desired properties of the product make it necessary for RS; to
exceed 6 percent by weight of the liquid VOC applied and that such properties cannot be
achieved by other means.

(C) The measurement techniques of paragraphs (a)(3)(v)(A)(1) and (a)(3)(v)(B)(1) of this
section shall be submitted to the Administrator for approval with the notification of
anticipated startup required under 860.7(a)(2).

(vi) The point at which M; is to be measured shall be established when the compliance
procedures are approved. The presumptive point of measurement shall be prior to
separation/ purification; a point after separation/purification may be adopted for enhanced
convenience or accuracy.

(4) Short-term liquid material balance. This method may be used as an alternative to the
monthly liquid material balance described in paragraph (a)(3) of this section. The owner
or operator using this method shall comply with the following procedures to determine
VOC emission reduction for a 3- to 7-day period and shall continuously monitor VOC
emissions as specified in §60.744.

(i) Use the procedures described in paragraphs (a)(3) (i) through (vi) of this section to
determine the overall emission reduction, R. Compliance is demonstrated if the value of R
is equal to or greater than 0.90.

(if) The number of days for the performance test (3 to 7) is to be based on the affected
facility's representative performance consistent with the requirements of 860.8(c). Data
demonstrating that the chosen test period is representative shall be submitted to the
Administrator for approval with the notification of anticipated startup required under
860.7(a)(2).

C-13



(b) Each owner or operator of an affected coating operation subject to the standard
specified in 860.742(b)(2) (alternative standard for coating operations) shall:

(1) Demonstrate that a total enclosure is installed. The total enclosure shall either be
approved by the Administrator in accordance with the provisions of §60.746, or meet the
requirements in paragraphs (b)(1) (i) through (vi) of this section, as follows:

(i) The only openings in the enclosure are forced makeup air and exhaust ducts and
natural draft openings such as those through which raw materials enter and exist the
coating operation;

(i) Total area of all natural draft openings does not exceed 5 percent of the total surface
area of the total enclosure's walls, floor, and ceiling;

(iii) All access doors and windows are closed during normal operation of the enclosed
coating operation, except for brief, occasional openings to accommodate process
equipment adjustments. If such openings are frequent, or if the access door or window
remains open for a significant amount of time during the process operation, it must be
considered a natural draft opening. Access doors used routinely by workers to enter and
exit the enclosed area shall be equipped with automatic closure devices;

(iv) Average inward face velocity (FV) across all natural draft openings is a minimum of
3,600 meters per hour as determined by the following procedures:

(A) Construct all forced makeup air ducts and all exhaust ducts so that the volumetric
flow rate in each can be accurately determined by the test methods and procedures
specified in 860.745 (c) and (d). Volumetric flow rates shall be calculated without the
adjustment normally made for moisture content; and

(B) Determine FV by Equation 6:

] i
. jil quut i -i-I q1n i
Vo=

{Equation &)

ksl

(v) The air passing through all natural draft openings flows into the enclosure
continuously. If FV is less than or equal to 9,000 meters per hour, the continuous inward
airflow shall be verified by continuous observation using smoke tubes, streamers, tracer
gases, or other means approved by the Administrator over the period that the volumetric
flow rate tests required to determine FV are carried out. If FV is greater than 9,000 meters
per hour, the direction of airflow thourgh the natural draft openings shall be presumed to
be inward at all times without verification.

C-14



(vi) All sources of emissions within the enclosure shall be a minimum of four equivalent
diameters away from each natural draft opening.

(2) Determine the control device efficiency using Equation (1) or Equations (3) and (4), as
applicable, and the test methods and procedures specified in 860.745 (b) through (g).

(3) Compliance is demonstrated if the installation of a total enclosure is demonstrated and
the value of E determined from Equation (1) or the value of Hsys determined from
Equations (3) and (4), as applicable, is equal to or greater than 0.95.

(c) To demonstrate compliance with 860.742(c)(1) (standard for coating mix preparation
equipment servicing a coating operation with concurrent construction of a control device
that uses at least 130 Mg per year of VOC), each owner or operator of affected coating
mix preparation equipment shall demonstrate that:

(1) Covers meeting the following specifications have been installed and are being used
properly:

(1) Cover shall be closed at all times except when adding ingredients, withdrawing
samples, transferring the contents, or making visual inspection when such activities
cannot be carried out with cover in place. Such activities shall be carried out through ports
of the minimum practical size;

(ii) Cover shall extend at least 2 centimeters beyond the outer rim of the opening or shall
be attached to the rim;

(iii) Cover shall be of such design and construction that contact is maintained between
cover and rim along the entire perimeter;

(iv) Any breach in the cover (such as a slit for insertion of a mixer shaft or port for
addition of ingredients) shall be covered consistent with paragraphs (c)(1) (i), (ii), and (iii)
of this section when not actively in use. An opening sufficient to allow safe clearance for
a mixer shaft is acceptable during those periods when the shaft is in place; and

(v) A polyehtylene or nonpermanent cover may be used provided it meets the
requirements of paragraphs (c)(2) (ii), (iii), and (iv) of this section. Such a cover shall not
be reused after once being removed.

(2) Procedures detailing the proper use of covers, as specified in paragraph (c)(1)(i) of this
section, have been posted in all areas where affected coatings mix preparation equipment
IS used,;

(3) The coating mix preparation equipment is vented to a control device while preparation
of the coating is taking place within the vessel; and

C-15



(4) The control device efficiency (E or Hsys, as applicable) determined using Equation (1)
or Equations (3) and (4), respectively, and the test methods and procedures specified in
860.745 (b) through (g) is equal to or greater than 0.95.

(d) To demonstrate compliance with §860.742(c)(2) (standard for coating mix preparation
equipment servicing a coating operation that does not have concurrent construction of a
control device but uses at least 130 Mg of VOC per year) or §60.742(c)(3) (standard for
coating mix preparation equipment servicing a coating operation that uses at least 95 Mg
but less than 130 Mg of VOC per year), each owner or operator of affected coating mix
preparation equipment shall demonstrate upon inspection that:

(1) Covers satisfying the specifications in paragraphs (c)(1) (i) through (v) of this section
have been installed and are being properly operated and maintained; and

(2) Procedures detailing the proper use of covers, as specified in paragraph (c)(1)(i) of this
section, have been posted in all areas where affected coating mix preparation equipment is
used.

(3) Owners or operators meeting the standard specified in §60.742 (c)(2)(ii) or (c)(3)(ii)
shall also demonstrate that the coating mix preparation equipment is vented to a control
device.

(e) If a control device other than a carbon adsorber, condenser, or incinerator is used to
control emissions from an affected facility, the necessary operating specifications for that
device must be approved by the Administrator. An example of such a device is a flare.

§60.744 Monitoring requirements.

(a) Each owner or operator of an affected facility shall install and calibrate all monitoring
devices required under the provisions of this section according to the manufacturer's
specifications, prior to the initial performance test in locations such that representative
values of the monitored parameters will be obtained. The parameters to be monitored shall
be continuously measured and recorded during each performance test.

(b) Each owner or operator of an affected facility that uses less than 95 Mg of VOC per
year and each owner or operator of an affected facility subject to the provisions specified
in 860.742(c)(3) shall:

(1) Make semiannual estimates of the projected annual amount of VOC to be used for the
manufacture of polymeric coated substrate at the affected coating operation in that year;
and

(2) Maintain records of actual VOC use.

(c) Each owner or operator of an affected facility controlled by a carbon adsorption

C-16



system and demonstrating compliance by the procedures described in 860.743 (a)(1), (2),
(b), or (c) (which include control device efficiency determinations) or 860.743(a)(4)
(short-term liquid material balance) shall carry out the monitoring provisions of paragraph
(c)(2) or (2) of this section, as appropriate.

(1) For carbon adsorption systems with a common exhaust stack for all the individual
adsorber vessels, install, calibrate, maintain, and operate, according to the manufacturer's
specifications, a monitoring device that continuously indicates and records the
concentration level of organic compounds in either the control device outlet gas stream or
in both the control device inlet and outlet gas streams. The outlet gas stream shall be
monitored if the percent increase in the concentration level of organic compounds is used
as the basis for reporting, as described in 860.747(d)(1)(i). The inlet and outlet gas
streams shall be monitored if the percent control device efficiency is used as the basis for
reporting, as described in 860.747(d)(2)(i).

(2) For carbon adsorption systems with individual exhaust stacks for each adsorber vessel,
install, calibrate, maintain, and operate, according to the manufacturer's specifications, a
monitoring device that continuously indicates and records the concentration level of
organic compounds in the outlet gas stream for a minimum of one complete adsorption
cycle per day for each adsorber vessel. The owner or operator may also monitor and
record the concentration level of organic compounds in the common carbon adsorption
system inlet gas stream or in each individual carbon adsorber vessel inlet stream. The
outlet gas streams shall be monitored if the percent increase in the concentration level of
organic compounds is used as the basis for reporting, as described in 860.747(d)(1)(ii). In
this case, the owner or operator shall compute daily a 3-day rolling average concentration
level of organics in the outlet gas stream from each individual adsorber vessel. The inlet
and outlet gas streams shall be monitored if the percent control device efficiency is used
as the basis for reporting, as described in 860.747(d)(2)(ii). In this case, the owner or
operator shall compute daily a 3-day rolling average efficiency for each individual
adsorber vessel.

(d) Each owner or operator of an affected facility controlled by a condensation system and
demonstrating compliance by the test methods described in 860.743 (a)(1), (2), (b), or (c)
(which include control device efficiency determinations) or 860.743(a)(4) (short-term
liquid material balance) shall install, calibrate, maintain, and operate, according to the
manufacturer's specifications, a monitoring device that continuously indicates and records
the temperature of the condenser exhaust stream.

(e) Each owner or operator of an affected facility controlled by a thermal incinerator and
demonstrating compliance by the test methods described in §60.743 (a)(1), (2), (b), or (c)
(which include control device efficiency determinations) shall install, calibrate, maintain,
and operate, according to the manufacturer's specifications, a monitoring device that
continuously indicates and records the combustion temperature of the incinerator. The
monitoring device shall have an accuracy within £1 percent of the temperature being
measured in Celsius degrees.

C-17



() Each owner or operator of an affected facility controlled by a catalytic incinerator and
demonstrating compliance by the test methods described in §60.743 (a)(1), (2), (b), or (c)
(which include control device efficiency determinations) shall install, calibrate, maintain,
and operate, according to the manufacturer's specifications, a monitoring device that
continuously indicates and records the gas temperature both upstream and downstream of
the catalyst bed. The monitoring device shall have an accuracy within +1 percent of the
temperature being measured in Celsius degrees.

(9) Each owner or operator of an affected facility who demonstrates compliance by the
test methods described in §60.743(a)(1) or (2) (which include vapor capture system
efficiency determinations) or 860.743(a)(4) (short-term liquid material balance) shall
submit a monitoring plan for the vapor capture system to the Administrator for approval
with the notification of anticipated startup required under 860.7(a)(2) of the General
Provisions. This plan shall identify the parameter to be monitored as an indicator of vapor
capture system performance (e.g., the amperage to the exhaust fans or duct flow rates) and
the method for monitoring the chosen parameter. The owner or operator shall install,
calibrate, maintain, and operate, according to the manufacturer's specifications, a
monitoring device that continuously indicates and records the value of the chosen
parameter.

(h) Each owner or operator of an affected facility who demonstrates compliance as
described in 860.743(b) shall follow the procedures described in paragraph (g) of this
section to establish a monitoring system for the total enclosure.

(i) Each owner or operator of an affected facility shall record time periods of mixing or
coating operations when the emission control device is malfunctioning or not in use.

(1) Each owner or operator of an affected facility shall record time periods of mixing or
coating operations when each monitoring device is malfunctioning or not in use.

(k) Records of the measurements and calculations required in 860.743 and 860.744 must
be retained for at least 2 years following the date of the measurements and calculations.

§60.745 Test methodsand procedures.

Methods in appendix A of this part, except as provided under 860.8(b), shall be used to
determine compliance as follows:

(a) Method 24 is used to determine the VOC content in coatings. If it is demonstrated to
the satisfaction of the Administrator that coating formulation data are equivalent to
Method 24 results, formulation data may be used. In the event of any inconsistency

between a Method 24 test and a facility's formulation data, the Method 24 test will govern.

For Method 24, the coating sample must be a 1-liter sample collected in a 1-liter container
at a point in the process where the sample will be representative of the coating applied to

C-18



the substrate (i.e., the sample shall include any dilution solvent or other VOC added
during the manufacturing process). The container must be tightly sealed immediately after
the sample is collected. Any solvent or other VOC added after the sample is taken must be
measured and accounted for in the calculations that use Method 24 results.

(b) Method 25 shall be used to determine VOC concentrations from incinerator gas
streams. Alternative Methods (18 or 25A), may be used as explained in the applicability
section of Method 25 in cases where use of Method 25 is demonstrated to be technically
infeasible. The owner or operator shall submit notice of the intended test method to the
Administrator for approval along with the notification of the performance test required
under 860.8(d) of the General Provisions. Except as indicated in paragraphs (b)(1) and
(b)(2) of this section, the test shall consist of three separate runs, each lasting a minimum
of 30 minutes.

(1) When the method is to be used in the determination of the efficiency of a fixed-bed
carbon adsorption system with a common exhaust stack for all the individual adsorber
vessels pursuant to 860.743 (a)(1), (b), or (c), the test shall consist of three separate runs,
each coinciding with one or more complete system rotations through the adsorption cycles
of all the individual adsorber vessels.

(2) When the method is to be used in the determination of the efficiency of a fixed-bed
carbon adsorption system with individual exhaust stacks for each adsorber vessel pursuant
to §60.743 (a)(2), (b), or (c), each adsorber vessel shall be tested individually. Each test
shall consist of three separate runs, each coinciding with one or more complete adsorption
cycles.

(c) Method 1 or 1A is used for sample and velocity traverses;

(d) Method 2, 2A, 2C, or 2D is used for velocity and volumetric flow rates;
(e) Method 3 is used for gas analysis;

(f) Method 4 is used for stack gas moisture;

(9) Methods 2, 2A, 2C, or 2D; 3; and 4 shall be performed, as applicable, at least twice
during each test run.

860.746 Permission to use alter native means of emission limitation.

(@) If, in the Administrator's judgment, an alternative means of emission limitation will
achieve a reduction in emissions of VOC from any emission point subject to §60.742(c) at
least equivalent to that required by 860.742(b)(2) or 860.742(c), respectively, the
Administrator will publish in the Federal Register a notice permitting the use of the
alternative means. The Administrator may condition permission on requirements that may
be necessary to ensure operation and maintenance to achieve the same emission reduction
as specified in 860.742(b)(2) or §60.742(c), respectively.

C-19



(b) Any notice under paragraph (a) of this section shall be published only after public
notice and an opportunity for a public hearing.

(c) Any person seeking permission under this section shall submit to the Administrator
either results from an emission test that accurately collects and measures all VOC
emissions from a given control device or an engineering evaluation that accurately
determines such emissions.

§60.747 Reporting and recordkeeping requirements.

(a) For each affected facility subject to the requirements of §60.742(b) and (c), the owner
or operator shall submit the performance test data and results to the Administrator as
specified in §860.8(a) of this part. In addition, the average values of the monitored
parameters measured at least every 15 minutes and averaged over the period of the
performance test shall be submitted with the results of all performance tests.

(b) Each owner or operator of an affected facility subject to the provisions specified in
860.742(c)(3) and claiming to use less than 130 Mg of VOC in the first year of operation
and each owner or operator of an affected facility claiming to use less than 95 Mg of VOC
in the first year of operation shall submit to the Administrator, with the notification of
anticipated startup required under 860.7(a)(2) of the General Provisions, a material flow
chart indicating projected VOC use. The owner or operator shall also submit actual VOC
use records at the end of the initial year.

(c) Each owner or operator of an affected facility subject to the provisions of
860.742(c)(3) and initially using less than 130 Mg of VOC per year and each owner or
operator of an affected facility initially using less than 95 Mg of VOC per year shall:

(1) Record semiannual estimates of projected VOC use and actual 12-month VOC use;

(2) Report the first semiannual estimate in which projected annual VOC use exceeds the
applicable cutoff; and

(3) Report the first 12-month period in which the actual VOC use exceeds the applicable
cutoff.

(d) Each owner or operator of an affected facility demonstrating compliance by the
methods described in §60.743(a)(1), (2), (4), (b), or (c) shall maintain records and submit
quarterly reports to the Administrator documenting the following:

(1) For those affected facilities monitoring only the carbon adsorption system outlet
concentration levels of organic compounds, the periods (during actual coating operations)
specified in paragraph (d)(1)(i) or (ii) of this section, as applicable.



(1) For carbon adsorption systems with a common exhaust stack for all the individual
adsorber vessels, all periods of three consecutive system rotations through the adsorption
cycles of all the individual adsorber vessels during which the average value of the
concentration level of organic compounds in the common outlet gas stream is more than
20 percent greater than the average value measured during the most recent performance
test that demonstrated compliance.

(it) For carbon adsorption systems with individual exhaust stacks for each adsorber vessel,
all 3-day rolling averages for each adsorber vessel when the concentration level of organic
compounds in the individual outlet gas stream is more than 20 percent greater than the
average value for that adsorber vessel measured during the most recent performance test
that demonstrated compliance.

(2) For those affected facilities monitoring both the carbon adsorption system inlet and
outlet concentration levels of organic compounds, the periods (during actual coating
operations), specified in paragraph (d)(2)(i) or (ii) of this section, as applicable.

(i) For carbon adsorption systems with a common exhaust stack for all the individual
adsorber vessels, all periods of three consecutive adsorption cycles of all the individual
adsorber vessels during which the average carbon adsorption system efficiency falls
below the applicable level as follows:

(A) For those affected facilities demonstrating compliance by the performance test
method described in §60.743(a)(1), the value of E determined using Equation (1) during
the most recent performance test that demonstrated compliance.

(B) For those affected facilities demonstrating compliance by the performance test
described in 860.743(a)(4), the average value of the system efficiency measured with the
monitor during the most recent performance test that demonstrated compliance.

(C) For those affected facilities demonstrating compliance pursuant to 860.743(b) or (c),
0.95.

(it) For carbon adsorption systems with individual exhaust stacks for each adsorber vessel,
all 3-day rolling averages for each adsorber vessel during which the average carbon
adsorber vessel efficiency falls below the applicable level as follows:

(A) For those affected facilities demonstrating compliance by the performance test
method described in §60.743(a)(2), (b), or (c), the value of H, determined using Equation
(3) during the most recent performance test that demonstrated compliance.

(B) For those affected facilities demonstrating compliance by the performance test
described in 860.743(a)(4), the average efficiency for that adsorber vessel measured with
the monitor during the most recent performance test that demonstrated compliance.



(3) For those affected facilities monitoring condenser exhaust gas temperature, all 3-hour
periods (during actual coating operations) during which the average exhaust temperature
is 5 or more Celsius degrees above the average temperature measured during the most
recent performance test that demonstrated compliance;

(4) For those affected facilities monitoring thermal incinerator combustion gas
temperature, all 3-hour periods (during actual coating operations) during which the
average combustion temperature of the device is more than 28 Celsius degrees below the
average combustion temperature of the device during the most recent performance test
that demonstrated compliance;

(5) For those affected facilities monitoring catalytic incinerator catalyst bed temperature,
all 3-hour periods (during actual coating operations) during which the average gas
temperature immediately before the catalyst bed is more than 28 Celsius degrees below
the average gas temperature during the most recent performance test that demonstrated
compliance and all 3-hour periods (during actual coating operations) during which the
average gas temperature difference across the catalyst bed is less than 80 percent of the
average gas temperature difference during the most recent performance test that
demonstrated compliance;

(6) For each affected facility monitoring a total enclosure pursuant to 860.744(h) or vapor
capture system pursuant to 860.744(g), all 3-hour periods (during actual coating
operations) during which the average total enclosure or vapor capture system monitor
readings vary by 5 percent or more from the average value measured during the most
recent performance test that demonstrated compliance.

(7) Each owner or operator of an affected coating operation not required to submit reports
under paragraphs (d)(1) through (6) of this section because no reportable periods have
occurred shall submit semiannual statements clarifying this fact.

(e) Each owner or operator of an affected coating operation, demonstrating compliance by
the test methods described in §60.743(a)(3) (liquid-liquid material balance) shall submit
the following:

(1) For months of compliance, semiannual reports to the Administrator stating that the
affected coating operation was in compliance for each 1-month period; and

(2) For months of noncompliance, quarterly reports to the Administrator documenting the
1-month amount of VOC contained in the coatings, the 1-month amount of VOC
recovered, and the percent emission reduction for each month.

(f) Each owner or operator of an affected coating operation, either by itself or with
associated coating mix preparation equipment, shall submit the following with the reports
required under paragraphs (d) and (e) of this section:



(1) All periods during actual mixing or coating operations when a required monitoring
device (if any) was malfunctioning or not operating; and

(2) All periods during actual mixing or coating operations when the control device was
malfunctioning or not operating.

(9) The reports required under paragraphs (b), (c), (d), and (e) of this section shall be
postmarked within 30 days of the end of the reporting period.

(h) Records required in 860.747 must be retained for at least 2 years.

(i) The requirements of this section remain in force until and unless EPA, in delegating
enforcement authority to a State under section 111(c) of the Act, approves reporting
requirements or an alternative means of compliance surveillance adopted by such States.
In this event, affected sources within the State will be relieved of the obligation to comply
with this subsection, provided that they comply with the requirements established by the
State.

§60.748 Delegation of authority.
(@) In delegating implementation and enforcement authority to a State under section

111(c) of the Act, the authorities contained in paragraph (b) of this section shall be
retained by the Administrator and not transferred to a State.

(b) Authorities that will not be delegated to States: 8860.743(a)(3)(v) (A) and (B);
60.743(e); 60.745(a); 60.746.



ATTACHMENT D

AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT
SAN DIEGO COUNTY

WORKSHOP REPORT

ADOPTION BY REFERENCE OF TITLE 40 CODE OF FEDERAL
REGULATION (CFR) PART 60, SUBPART VVV -
STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW STATIONARY SOURCE (NSPS);
POLYMERIC COATING OF SUPPORTING SUBSTRATES

A workshop notice was mailed to five facilities in San Diego County that are subject to 40
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 60, Subpart VVVV - Standards of Performance for
New Stationary Source (NSPS); Polymeric Coating of Supporting Substrates. Notices were
also mailed to all Economic Development Corporations and Chambers of Commerce in San

Diego County, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, the California Air Resources
Board, and other interested parties.

The workshop was held on April 26, 2006. There were no public comments at the workshop.

05/23/07



	AttC-Subpart VVV.pdf
	Subpart VVV—Standards of Performance for Polymeric Coating of Supporting Substrates Facilities 
	§ 60.740 Applicability and designation of affected facility. 
	§ 60.741   Definitions, symbols, and cross-reference tables. 
	2vvv.pdf
	§ 60.742   Standards for volatile organic compounds. 
	§ 60.743   Compliance provisions. 
	§ 60.744   Monitoring requirements. 
	§ 60.745   Test methods and procedures. 
	§ 60.746   Permission to use alternative means of emission limitation. 
	 
	§ 60.747   Reporting and recordkeeping requirements. 
	§ 60.748   Delegation of authority. 

	Untitled

	AttD-Workshop Rpt.pdf
	AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT




